
MCDUFFIE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Regular Session Meeting 

Tuesday Evening, March 19, 2024 
Government Complex Meeting Room 

AGENDA 
PUBLIC HEARING 

1. Rezone property on Rousseau Creek Road from R-1 to C-1.
2. Vegetative Buffer Variance for property on Rousseau Creek Road.

WELCOME & CALL TO ORDER  Chairman Newton 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

PUBLIC INPUT  

APPROVALS 

Agenda  Current 
Minutes Regular Meeting Wednesday, March 6, 2024 

INFORMATION & ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 McDuffie County Animal Shelter Grand Reopening, Saturday, March 30th | 10 am - 4 pm 
 McDuffie County Camping Season Kickoff - Big Hart Campground | Saturday, April 6th | 9 am - 8 pm
 Thomson-McDuffie Chamber Administrative Professionals Day | April 24, 2024
 2024 ACCG Annual Conference | Savannah, Georgia | April 25-28, 2024
 Recognition of the McDuffie County Recreation Department 12U Basketball Team for their State 

Championship win.
 Recognition of Certification for McDuffie County as The AARP Network of Age-Friendly States and 

Communities.

None 

None 

APPOINTMENT/REAPPOINTMENT 

OLD BUSINESS  

NEW BUSINESS 

1. Consideration to Rezone property on Rousseau Creek Road from R-1 to C-1.
2. Consideration to Approve Vegetative Buffer Variance for Property on Rousseau Creek Road.
3. Consideration of Approval of a Temporary Alcohol License – Willie Mac’s for Summer Kickoff at

Raysville Marina.
4. Consideration to approve the purchase of a 2024 Ford Wheeled Coach ambulance from ETR.

Cost: $363,351.00.
5. Consideration to Approve 1 Accord Concession Stand Fiber Conduit for the Recreation Department.

Cost: $5,600.
6. Monthly Budget Report
7. Monthly Financial Report

ADJOURNMENT 



 

 

 

McDuffie County Board of Commissioners  

Commissioners’ Regular Session Minutes   
Wednesday Morning, March 6, 2024 | 10:00 am 

Government Complex Meeting Room 
 
 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT:  
Charlie G Newton, Chairman 
Fred Favors, Commissioner  
Gloria Thompson, Commissioner  
Sammie Wilson, Vice-Chair  
 
MEDIA: McDuffie Progress  
Members of the Public  

COUNTY REPRESENTATION:  
Carrie Edwards, County Clerk  

Pam Workman, Finance Director  
Jason Smith, Community Development Director 

Stephen Sewell, Fire Chief  
Paul Johnson, Coroner 

Robert Spurlin, IT Director   
 

WELCOME & CALL TO ORDER        Chairman Newton 
 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

APPROVALS 
    Agenda  Current 
          Minutes  Regular Meeting Tuesday, February 20, 2024  
   Work Session   Monday, March 4, 2024  
 
Chairman Newton asked if there were any corrections to the current agenda. 
 
With no corrections, Vice Chair Wilson motioned to approve the current agenda. Vice Commissioner Thompson 
seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously.  
 
Chairman Newton asked if there were any corrections to the minutes.  
 
With no corrections, Vice Chair Wilson motioned to approve the minutes. Vice Commissioner Thompson 
seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously. 
 
INFORMATION & ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

▪ ACCG Legislative Breakfast | Atlanta, Georgia | Thursday, March 7, 2024 | 7:30 am – 11 am  
▪ 2024 ACCG Annual Conference | Savannah, Georgia | April 25-28, 2024 

 
APPOINTMENT/REAPPOINTMENT None 
 
OLD BUSINESS    None  
  
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Consideration to Approve Proclamation of March 12th as Thomson Alumnae Chapter of Delta Sigma 
Theta Sorority, Incorporated Charter Day.  

 
Chairman Newton opened the floor for a motion to Approve the Proclamation of March 12th as 
Thomson Alumnae Chapter of Delta Sigma Theta Sorority, Incorporated Charter Day. 
Commissioner Thompson made the motion to approve the agenda item. Commissioner Favors 
seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously. 



 

 

 

McDuffie County Board of Commissioners  

Commissioners’ Regular Session Minutes   
Wednesday Morning, March 6, 2024 | 10:00 am 

Government Complex Meeting Room 
 
 

2. Consideration to Approve Voting Delegate for Consideration of Three Statewide Georgia Opioid 
Settlement Advisory Commission Members (GOSAC) and Regional Advisory Council (RAC) Members. 
 
Chairman Newton opened the floor for a motion to select Vice Chair Wilson for Delegate. Commissioner 
Favors made the motion to approve. Commissioner Thompson seconded the motion. The motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
3. Consideration of Naming a portion of West Bypass in memory of Special Agent Bob Kirk.  

 
Chairman Newton opened the floor for a motion. Vice Chair Wilson made the motion to approve. 
Commissioner Thompson seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously. 

 
4. Consideration to Approve Wrightsboro Road Sewer Improvements-Addendum 3.  

 
Chairman Newton opened the floor for a motion. Commissioner Favors made the motion to approve the 
item. Vice Chair Wilson seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously. 

 
5. Consideration to Approve the GEMA Statewide Mutual Aid and Assistance Agreement. 

 
Chairman Newton opened the floor for a motion. Commissioner Favors made the motion to approve the 
item. Vice Chair Wilson seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously. 
 

6. Consideration to Approve the GAP Group, Inc. & WinGAP User Agreement Defining the Relationship, 
Responsibilities, and Obligations of GAP Group, Inc. the Service Provider, and McDuffie County, the 
User.  

 
Chairman Newton opened the floor for a motion. Commissioner Thompson made the motion to approve 
the item. Vice Chair Wilson seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously. 

 
7. Consideration to Approve the Contract Agreement between the McDuffie County Board of 

Commissioners and the UGA Board of Regents on behalf of the UGA Cooperative Extension.  
 

Chairman Newton opened the floor for a motion. Commissioner Thompson made the motion to approve 
the item. Vice Chair Wilson seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously. 

 
8. Consideration to Approve Software for Planning and Zoning Department: Cloudpermit: Building 

Permitting and Licensing Software. 
 

Chairman Newton opened the floor for a motion. Commissioner Thompson made the motion to approve 
the item. Commissioner Favors seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously. 

 
9. Consideration to Approve One (1) E-ONE HR 100’ Aerial with 1500 GPM Hale Pump, 500 Gallon Booster 

Tank on 2025 Model.  
 

https://cloudpermit.com/
https://cloudpermit.com/


 

 

 

McDuffie County Board of Commissioners  

Commissioners’ Regular Session Minutes   
Wednesday Morning, March 6, 2024 | 10:00 am 

Government Complex Meeting Room 
 

Chairman Newton opened the floor for a motion. Commissioner Thompson made the motion to approve 
the item. Vice Chair Wilson seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously. 

 
10. Consideration to Approve the February 2024 ACO Report.  

  
Chairman Newton opened the floor for a motion. Vice Chair Wilson made the motion to approve the item. 
Commissioner Favors seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously. 

 
11. Consideration to Approve Trash Amnesty Day, March 23rd or 30th  

 
Chairman Newton opened the floor for a motion. Commissioner Favors made the motion to approve the 
item. Commissioner Thompson seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously. 

 
12. Consideration to Approve the Amended McDuffie County EMS Schedule of Fees  

 
Chairman Newton opened the floor for a motion. Commissioner Thompson made the motion to approve 
the item. Vice Chair Wilson seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Chairman Newton opened the floor for a motion to adjourn. Vice Chair Wilson made the motion to 
adjourn. Commissioner Thompson seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously. The meeting 
adjourned 10:14 a.m. 

 
 

 
MCDUFFIE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

ATTEST:   
Charles G. Newton, IV, Chairman Carrie R Edwards, County Clerk 

 



STAFF REPORT 
 

COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING: March 19, 2024 
 
DATE:  March 13, 2024  
TO:  McDuffie County Planning Commission  
FROM:  Jason Smith 
ISSUE: 1) Rezone property on Rousseau Creek Road from R-1 to C-1 

2) Vegetative Buffer Variance for property on Rousseau Creek Road  
 
REZONING 

CURRENT ZONE:  R-1 (Low Density Residential/Agriculture District) 
PROPOSED ZONE:  C-1 (Neighborhood Service Commercial District) 
ACREAGE:  4 acres – Rousseau Creek Road (Parcel 00600002B00) 

    
VARIANCE 

CURRENT ZONE:  C-1 (Neighborhood Service Commercial District) 
PROPOSED ZONE:  C-1 (Neighborhood Service Commercial District) 
ACREAGE:  7 acres – Rousseau Creek Road (Parcel 00600002B00) 

 
BACKGROUND: Kenneth Miles is requesting to rezone 4 acres of a larger 82-acre parcel for commercial 
use to expand a planned RV and boat storage facility. In addition, Mr. Miles is requesting a variance for 
the reduction of a vegetative buffer to 25 feet on property near the intersection of Cobbham and 
Rousseau Creek roads.  
 
FACTS AND FINDINGS:  

1. Part of the property was rezoned for commercial use in March 2023.  
2. The property owner plans to use the additional 4 acres for more storage. 
3. Per the county ordinance, a 100-foot vegetative buffer is required along the property lines 

abutting residentially-zoned property. This buffer is required in the county’s land use ordinance 
(Sec. 44-87.2), as the commercial property abuts residential property on two sides.  

4. The property said the reduction in buffer was needed to facilitate better traffic flow around the 
site. 

5. Residents of the adjacent properties (one of which is Mr. Miles’s son-in-law) have notified the 
applicant that they are OK with the reduction. However, the owner of the large tract to the east 
of the property, Roger Dozier, wrote a letter objecting to both the rezoning and the reduction of 
the buffer.  

6. Applicant plans to place additional cedar trees along the eastern border to provide additional 
sight relief.  

7. Access to the property would be from Hwy 150. 

PLANNING COMMISSION NOTES:  
• Several residents from the Rousseau Creek area spoke in relation to the rezoning and variance 

request. One resident has submitted a petition with 60 signatures (as of March 5) asking for 
the following:  

o Installation of speed tables in the neighborhood at the cost of the county 



o Designation of “no parking” area 
o Installation of “no unattended vehicles” signs 
o Consistency of speed limits in the community.  

• Another property owner opposed speed humps, and said many other residents in the area 
agreed. but voiced support of the project. 

PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  
1) Rezoning: Planning Commissioners unanimously approved recommending the rezoning.  
2) Variance: Planning Commissioners Staff unanimously voted to recommend approval of the 

variance for the reduction of 100 feet of vegetative buffer to 25 feet of vegetative buffer on 
each side of the property that borders residential property contingent that the property is 
used for the stated use of storage for RV, boats and other vehicles. Any other use of the 
property would revert the buffers to 100 vegetative feet as required in the county’s land use 
ordinance. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 

1. The Commission approves the rezoning request.   
2. The Commission denies the rezoning request.  
3. The Commission approves the variance request.   
4. The Commission denies the variance request.  

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Rezoning Application 
2. Variance Application 
3. Tax Map 
4. Photo of rezoning sign 
5. Communications from area residents 
6. Petition and signatures 



















2/22/24, 2 57 PM qPublic net  McDuffie County, GA  Report  00600002B00

https //qpublic schneidercorp com/Application aspx?AppID 712&LayerID 11417&PageTypeID 4&PageID 4890&KeyValue 00600002B00 1/2

Would you like to submit an appeal to the Board of Assessors? Click Here for more information.

Appeal to Board of Assessors

Parcel Number 00600002B00
Location Address ROUSSEAU CREEK RD
Legal Description ROUSSEAU CREEK RD NE

(Note: Not to be used on legal documents)
Class A5-Agricultural

(Note: This is for tax purposes only. Not to be
used for zoning.)

Zoning R1
Tax District County (District 01)
Millage Rate 24.125
Acres 82.01
Homestead
Exemption

No (S0)

Landlot/District N/A

View Map

MILES KENNETH R & MILES RACHEL
M
PO BOX 309
APPLING, GA 30802

Type Description Calculation Method Soil Productivity Acres

RUR Open Land Rural 6 0.61

RUR Open Land Rural 4 3.7

RUR Open Land Rural 5 25.27

RUR Woodland Rural 3 27.78

RUR Woodland Rural 6 3.24

RUR Woodland Rural 7 12.82

RUR Open Land Rural 9 5.44

RUR Woodland Rural 5 3.15

Description Year Built Dimensions/Units Identical Units Value

Fire Fee 2022 0x0 / 0 23400 $0

Online Appeal

Summary

Owner

Rural Land

Accessory Information

McDuf�e County, GA



2/22/24, 2 57 PM qPublic net  McDuffie County, GA  Report  00600002B00

https //qpublic schneidercorp com/Application aspx?AppID 712&LayerID 11417&PageTypeID 4&PageID 4890&KeyValue 00600002B00 2/2

Sale Date
Deed Book /
Page

Plat Book /
Page

Sale
Price Reason Grantor Grantee

12/12/2022 728 157 S 397I $575,000 *Large Tract -
Quali�ed

BENKOSKI ALICE D
ESTATE

MILES KENNETH R & MILES
RACHEL M

2/25/2000 258 225 S 397I $0 Unquali�ed Sale JONES ALICE D &
ROGER &

BENKOSKI ALICE D

    2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

  Previous Value $183,360 $178,250 $232,844 $232,844 $232,844

  Land Value $183,360 $183,360 $178,250 $232,844 $232,844

+ Improvement Value $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

+ Accessory Value $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

= Current Value $183,360 $183,360 $178,250 $232,844 $232,844

  10 Year Land Covenant
(Agreement Year / Value)

  2022 / $51,214 2012 / $49,768 2012 / $48,368 2012 / $47,001

No data available for the following modules: Land, Conservation Use Rural Land, Residential Improvement Information, Commercial
Improvement Information, Mobile Homes, Prebill Mobile Homes, Permits, Sketches.

Sales

Valuation

Photos

The McDuf�e County Assessor makes every effort to produce the most
accurate information possible. No warranties, expressed or implied are
provided for the data herein, its use or interpretation. The assessment
information is from the last certi�ed tax roll. All other data is subject to
change.
|  User Privacy Policy |  GDPR Privacy Notice
Last Data Upload: 2/22/2024, 10:23:40 AM

Contact Us Developed
by









1

Jason B. Smith

From: Roger Dozier <rogerdozier5005@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, March 13, 2024 2:57 PM
To: Jason B. Smith
Cc: Newton, Charlie
Subject: Subject: Objection to rezoning and reduced buffer zone

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the Thomson-McDuffie.Gov email system. Please exercise caution before clicking 
links, opening attachments, replying, or providing information to the sender. 

 

Attention; Jason Smith and the Planning and County Commission  

. 

My daughter lives on property I deeded to her from my property   All of this land had been in the Dozier Family for 
Generations including all the Lane property which was originally owned by the greataunt, Bertie Dozier Lane which was 
purchased by the same family.  Our farm was a Dairy Farm while I was growing up and my brother and myself were the 
only ones of my generation in the family to participate in any of the hard work required to earn money for property 
taxes.  My cousin inherited the property in question, not that long ago, from his mother who inherited it from my Uncle 
Roger.  I was not happy when he sold the land to get a quick profit when he never participated in any of the farming 
activity. I could not afford to buy farm land for $8,000/acre. 

 

Thus I object to the properties in question being approved for Commercial zoning.  Even though I understand that this 
may have already been approved by the Planning Commission. 

Furthermore. I vehemently object to reducing the standard 100 Feet of buffer zone to 25 Feet or any distance less than 
the standard 100 Feet.  All of these possible changes will reduce the value of my land and if I sell home site lots to 
anyone in the adjacent property, they would not want a boat and storage facility in their backyard and thus the value of 
the property would be degraded for any future home site for my family members or outside real estate firms or buyers. 

 

Since I do not live out there, I did not see the required posting for changes to the zone requests.  Hence I am objecting to 
all of it at this time.  My nephew, Dave Dozier, owns most of the original farm and hopefully will leave it to his son. 
Additionally I suggest the Planning and County Commissioners require notification of all adjacent land owners in any 
future Zone Requests. 

 

I also feel that the new owners have not adequately evaluated the economics of this investment as almost everyone 
that uses this access to the Lake, Rousseau Creek Road, live at the lake and have no need of a storage facility.  Most 
areas that have that type of traffic are in areas where boat and camper storage is currently available such as 
Mistletoe State Park and many other Lake access points, 



2

 

I ask this final question... 

Would you want boat storage and camper storage in your backyard?  If so, would you at least want as much buffer as 
possible which is the reason for the standard buffer zone. 

 

Thank you for your consideration, 

Roger Dozier 

. 

 



1

Jason B. Smith

From: Craig Wildi
Sent: Monday, February 26, 2024 7:22 AM
To: Jason B. Smith
Subject: FW: Rousseau Creek Road RV/Boat Storage Facility 

 
 
From: Paul Brunson <pcb194605@gmail.com>  
Sent: Friday, February 23, 2024 7:12 PM 
To: Craig Wildi <Craig.Wildi@thomson-mcduffie.gov>; Newton, Charlie <Charlie.Newton@thomson-mcduffie.gov>; 
bill.joplin@thomson-mcduffie.gov; Gloria Thompson <Gloria.Thompson@thomson-mcduffie.gov> 
Cc: Gene Hagberg <gene0427@gmail.com> 
Subject: Rousseau Creek Road RV/Boat Storage Facility  
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the Thomson-McDuffie.Gov email system. Please exercise caution before clicking 
links, opening attachments, replying, or providing information to the sender. 

 

I understand that the storage facility and necessary rezoning has   already been approved .  And now there is a request 
for additional acreage for the facility area.   
It should be apparent to all the commissioners that there will be a huge increase in traffic on Rousseau Creek Road once 
the storage facility is operational and these issues should be addressed before any construction is started. 
  First and foremost is the access to the existing boat ramp.  This ramp was obviously not built for a lot of traffic, parking 
of boat trailers/vehicles is already a problem, and trash is an absolute mess.  Can you imagine the situation with the 
increase in boat traffic? 
And another serious issue is the speed of the traffic in the community.  This is already a problem and should be 
addressed now.  My understanding is that Gene Hagberg has already brought this issue up with some of you.  His idea of 
speed bumps is a good one and I agree with this heartily.  We have runners, walkers, bikes, and golf carts on this road 
constantly.  Adults and children are out there at most times.   
I’m asking that all these issues be considered before making any further decisions.   
Thank you for your leadership. 
Paul Brunson  
 
Get Outlook for iOS 



1

Jason B. Smith

From: Craig Wildi
Sent: Monday, February 26, 2024 11:40 AM
To: Jason B. Smith
Subject: FW: Rousseau Creek Subdivision Petition to McDuffie County

 
 
From: Paul Brunson <pcbrunson@hotmail.com>  
Sent: Monday, February 26, 2024 11:39 AM 
To: Gene Hagberg <gene0427@gmail.com>; Craig Wildi <Craig.Wildi@thomson-mcduffie.gov>; Newton, Charlie 
<Charlie.Newton@thomson-mcduffie.gov>; Gloria Thompson <Gloria.Thompson@thomson-mcduffie.gov>; 
bill.joplin@thomson-mcduffie.gov; Sammie Wilson <Sammie.Wilson@thomson-mcduffie.gov>; Fred Favors 
<Fred.Favors@thomson-mcduffie.gov> 
Subject: Re: Rousseau Creek Subdivision Petition to McDuffie County 
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the Thomson-McDuffie.Gov email system. Please exercise caution before clicking 
links, opening attachments, replying, or providing information to the sender. 

 

Please accept this email as my endorsement of the petition presented by Gene Hagberg on 2/25/2024 via email 
concerning the Storage facility on Rousseau Creek Road.   
I would like to amend the petition to include a regular trash pickup at the boat ramp.  Whether or not the petition is 
accepted, this location should be included in the county's routine pickup schedule. 
 
Thank you for your consideration in these matters. 
Paul Brunson  
6282 Rousseau Creek Road  
 
Get Outlook for iOS 

From: Gene Hagberg <gene0427@gmail.com> 
Sent: Sunday, February 25, 2024 12:19:41 PM 
To: McDuffie County Planning And Zoning <craig.wildi@thomson-mcduffie.gov>; Charlie Newton 
<Charlie.Newton@thomson-mcduffie.gov>; gloria.thompson@thomson-mcduffie.gov <gloria.thompson@thomson-
mcduffie.gov>; bill.joplin@thomson-mcduffie.gov <bill.joplin@thomson-mcduffie.gov>; sammie.wilson@thomson-
mcduffie.gov <sammie.wilson@thomson-mcduffie.gov>; fred.favors@thomson-mcduffie.gov <fred.favors@thomson-
mcduffie.gov> 
Subject: Rousseau Creek Subdivision Petition to McDuffie County  
  

Sir/Madam, 
 
Attached in a Word document is a petition to the McDuffie County Council and McDuffie County 
Planning and Zoning Commission from the residents of the Rousseau Creek Subdivision. 
 
Please accept this email as my signed endorsement of said petition.  
 

Roy Eugene "Gene" Hagberg III 



2

6287 Rousseau Creek Rd 

Thomson, GA 30824 

gene0427@gmail.com 
706-699-1546 



1

Jason B. Smith

From: Craig Wildi
Sent: Thursday, February 29, 2024 7:41 AM
To: Jason B. Smith
Subject: FW: Rousseau Creek Subdivision Petition to McDuffieCounty

 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: Gina Brunson <gina_brunson@hotmail.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, February 28, 2024 12:29 PM 
To: Jopling, Bill <Bill.Jopling@thomson-mcduffie.gov>; Craig Wildi <Craig.Wildi@thomson-mcduffie.gov>; Newton, 
Charlie <Charlie.Newton@thomson-mcduffie.gov>; Gloria Thompson <Gloria.Thompson@thomson-mcduffie.gov>; 
Sammie Wilson <Sammie.Wilson@thomson-mcduffie.gov>; Fred Favors <Fred.Favors@thomson-mcduffie.gov> 
Subject: Rousseau Creek Subdivision Petition to McDuffieCounty 
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the Thomson-McDuffie.Gov email system. Please exercise caution 
before clicking links, opening attachments, replying, or providing information to the sender. 
  
 
 
Please accept this email as my endorsement of the petition by Gene Hagberg on 2/25/2024 via email concerning the 
Storage Facility on Rousseau Creek Road. 
  I would also like to request that the boat ramp on this road be included in your weekly garbage pickup schedule.  This 
area generally has all sorts of garbage and trash scattered all about the area. 
Thank you for considering of the above matters. 
 
Regina Brunson  
6282 Rousseau Creek Road  
Sent from my iPad 



1

Jason B. Smith

From: Craig Wildi
Sent: Monday, February 26, 2024 9:06 AM
To: Jason B. Smith
Subject: FW: Rousseau Creek Subdivision Petition to McDuffie County

 
 
From: Marty Wright <mwright4348@gmail.com>  
Sent: Monday, February 26, 2024 8:58 AM 
To: Gene Hagberg <gene0427@gmail.com> 
Cc: Newton, Charlie <Charlie.Newton@thomson-mcduffie.gov>; Craig Wildi <Craig.Wildi@thomson-mcduffie.gov>; 
bill.joplin@thomson-mcduffie.gov; Fred Favors <Fred.Favors@thomson-mcduffie.gov>; Gloria Thompson 
<Gloria.Thompson@thomson-mcduffie.gov>; Sammie Wilson <Sammie.Wilson@thomson-mcduffie.gov> 
Subject: Re: Rousseau Creek Subdivision Petition to McDuffie County 
 
This is not a subdivision! If you want to live in a Subdivision move to one. I have lived here for a long time. Leave it the 
hell alone.  Most of us don’t want any changes. If you want safety quit diving around dinking on your golf carts. Leave 
this place the hell alone.   
             Marty Wright  
 
On Sun, Feb 25, 2024 at 12:19 PM Gene Hagberg <gene0427@gmail.com> wrote: 

Sir/Madam, 
 
Attached in a Word document is a petition to the McDuffie County Council and McDuffie County 
Planning and Zoning Commission from the residents of the Rousseau Creek Subdivision. 
 
Please accept this email as my signed endorsement of said petition.  
 

Roy Eugene "Gene" Hagberg III 
6287 Rousseau Creek Rd 

Thomson, GA 30824 

gene0427@gmail.com 
706-699-1546 



1

Jason B. Smith

From: Craig Wildi
Sent: Monday, February 26, 2024 9:15 AM
To: Jason B. Smith
Subject: FW: Rousseau Creek Subdivision Petition to McDuffie County

 
 

From: Gene's Mail <gene0427@gmail.com>  
Sent: Monday, February 26, 2024 9:10 AM 
To: Marty Wright <mwright4348@gmail.com> 
Cc: Newton, Charlie <Charlie.Newton@thomson-mcduffie.gov>; Craig Wildi <Craig.Wildi@thomson-mcduffie.gov>; 
bill.joplin@thomson-mcduffie.gov; Fred Favors <Fred.Favors@thomson-mcduffie.gov>; Gloria Thompson 
<Gloria.Thompson@thomson-mcduffie.gov>; Sammie Wilson <Sammie.Wilson@thomson-mcduffie.gov> 
Subject: Re: Rousseau Creek Subdivision Petition to McDuffie County 
 
Marty, 
 
You don’t live on Rousseau Creek Rd and are isolated from the traffic problems. As you can see from the email traffic, 
most of us in the neighborhood do want the changes to ensure our safety. The petition is getting real good response.  
 
Gene Hagberg 
706-699-1546 
gene0427@gmail.com 
 

On Feb 26, 2024, at 8:57 AM, Marty Wright <mwright4348@gmail.com> wrote: 

 
This is not a subdivision! If you want to live in a Subdivision move to one. I have lived here for a long 
time. Leave it the hell alone.  Most of us don’t want any changes. If you want safety quit diving around 
dinking on your golf carts. Leave this place the hell alone.   
             Marty Wright  
 
On Sun, Feb 25, 2024 at 12:19 PM Gene Hagberg <gene0427@gmail.com> wrote: 

Sir/Madam, 
 
Attached in a Word document is a petition to the McDuffie County Council and 
McDuffie County Planning and Zoning Commission from the residents of the Rousseau 
Creek Subdivision. 
 
Please accept this email as my signed endorsement of said petition.  
 

Roy Eugene "Gene" Hagberg III 
6287 Rousseau Creek Rd 

Thomson, GA 30824 

gene0427@gmail.com 
706-699-1546 



Craig and Charlie, 
 
I will not be able to attend the Public Hearing of The McDuffie County Planning Board on March 5, 2024. 
The meeting is in reference to Rousseau Creek Rd Parcel 00600002B00. I am submitting my comments 
via email. 
 
The zoning change is for approval of a storage facility for RV/boats, both covered and non-covered. As I 
understand this issue, the zoning change was already approved last year for 7 acres. This is just an 
amendment to it to add 4 more acres and non-covered storage to the project.   
 
Here is my concern: 
 
Our Rousseau Creek boat ramp is almost a little secret. It does not show up on the Clarks Hill 
Lake/Thurmond Lake maps. There aren't that many non-residents that use it. Having a boat storage 
facility on Rousseau Creed Rd will greatly increase boat traffic in our neighborhood. The ramp at the end 
of Rousseau Creek will be the closest place for these people to launch their boats. I could easily imagine 
4 times the boat traffic in our neighborhood with a boat storage facility so close.  
 
As you all know, during boating season many people already speed through the neighborhood pulling 
their boats at way over the speed limit. I've seen them doing 50+ mph. This creates a very real traffic 
safety hazard with the potential to take lives. The safety of our residents is the main problem and 
concern. 
Additionally, parking will be a major problem. There is no room at the ramp for very many vehicles with 
trailers; maybe 8-10 at the most. They will wind up parking all over the roadway in front of the resident's 
properties. 
 
Here is my recommendation to help alleviate the safety problem. 
 
Speed humps in our neighborhood: Speed humps are a traffic control safety device used to save lives. 
Why not tie the approval/building of the boat storage facility to the county funded installation of speed 
humps in our neighborhood. This would at least slow down the inevitable increase in traffic. In other 
words, I have no objection to the RV/boat storage facility as long as the county will also ensure our 
neighborhood traffic safety as part of the deal. 
 
For those who object to speed humps, and I know they are out there: I am referring to the long raised 
speed humps where you need to slow down to about 25 mph to safely navigate them. You should 
already be doing about 25 mph anyway. I am not referring to the little narrow speed bumps that are 
typically in commercial shopping areas, and you almost have to come to a complete stop to avoid 
damaging your vehicle. 
 
Making this a proactive traffic safety issue will be the best solution. 
 
Gene Hagberg 
6287 Rousseau Creek Rd 
Thomson, GA 30824 
gene0427@gmail.com 
706-699-1546 

mailto:gene0427@gmail.com


A Petition to the  
McDuffie County Council and  

McDuffie County Planning and Zoning Commission  
from the Residents of the  

Rousseau Creek Subdivision of  
McDuffie County, Georgia 

 
February 25, 2024 
 
This petition is in reference to the proposed zoning change to allow the construction of 
an RV and boat storage facility on eleven acres at Rousseau Creek Road parcel 
00600002B00. 
  
As we understand the issue, the zoning change was approved last year for seven acres. 
The March 5, 2024 Planning and Zoning meeting is for allowing public input to the 
current amendment to add four more acres and non-covered storage to the project.   
 
The safety of our residents is our main concern: 
 
During boating season, we already experience many people speeding through the 
neighborhood, pulling their boats, sometimes in excess of 50 mph. This creates a very 
real traffic safety hazard with the potential to take lives.  
 
Having a boat storage facility on Rousseau Creek Road will greatly increase traffic in 
our neighborhood. The ramp at the end of Rousseau Creek Road will be the closest 
place for these people to launch/load their boats. We can easily imagine four times the 
traffic in our neighborhood with a boat storage facility so close by.  
 
Our recommendation to help alleviate the safety problem: 
  
Speed tables in our neighborhood: Speed tables are a traffic control safety device used 
to save lives. This would at least slow down the inevitable increase in traffic.  
We have runners, walkers, bikers, and golf carts on this road constantly.  Our 
community also includes special needs adults and children who walk along the road. 
The speed limit signs need to be corrected. Currently, if you are driving in one direction, 
the speed limit sign reads 35 mph. If you driving in the opposite direction, the sign reads 
25 mph. The speed limit at all locations within the neighborhood should be 25 mph. 
 
For those who object to speed tables, and we know they are out there: We are referring 
to the long-raised speed tables causing motorists to slow down to about 25 mph to 
safely navigate them. Traffic should already be going that speed, as previously pointed 
out. We are not referring to the little narrow speed bumps that are typically in 
commercial shopping areas, which cause motorists to come to nearly a complete stop 
to avoid damaging their vehicles. 
 
 



Parking at the boat ramp will become a major problem:  
 
Parking of boat trailers/vehicles is already a problem, and trash is an absolute mess. At 
most, there is only room at the ramp to park about eight boat trailers/vehicles. Can you 
imagine the situation with the increase in traffic? They will wind up parking all over the 
roadway in front of the residents’ properties.  
 
Our recommendation to help alleviate the parking problem: 
 
No parking zones need to be appropriately established with signs. No unattended 
vehicle signs need to be appropriately placed. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
We want the approval and construction of the boat storage facility to be contingent upon 
county funded installation of speed tables in our neighborhood, with no special tax 
levied on the residents of our community. The county will realize more than sufficient 
funds from the increase in tax revenue generated by the storage facility. 
 
It should be apparent to all the Commissioners and the Planning and Zoning 
Commission that there will be a huge increase in traffic on Rousseau Creek Road once 
the storage facility is operational and these issues should be addressed before any 
construction is started. 
 
We are asking that the county put the safety of our residents above all else, and these 
issues be considered before making any further decisions.   
 
Thank you for your leadership. 







STAFF REPORT 
 

MCDUFFIE COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING: March 19, 2024 
 

DATE: 
TO: 
FROM: 
ISSUE: 

 
BUSIENSS: 
ADDRESS: 

March 15, 2024  
McDuffie Commission  
Jason Smith  
Beer and Wine license request – Special Event permit 

 
Willie Macs 
117 Shoreline Drive, Tignall, GA 

APPLICANT(S): Penny Warren 
 

BACKGROUND: Willie Mac’s is sponsoring a summer kickoff concert at Raysville Marina on April 13 from 
noon until 7:30 p.m. 

 
FACTS AND FINDINGS: 

1. The applicant has submitted the appropriate paperwork and passed their background check. 
 

ALTERNATIVES: 
1. Commission members approve the alcohol license request. 
2. Commission members deny the alcohol license request. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval of the request. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Application  













STAFF REPORT 

COMMISSIONERS’ MEETING:     March 19, 2024 

DATE:                   March 13, 2024 

TO:                        Board of Commissioners 

FROM:                   Stephen Sewell, Fire Chief 

ISSUE:                    Consideration to approve the purchase of a 2024 Ford Wheeled Coach ambulance 

                                from ETR. Total Cost is $363,351.00. 

BACKGROUND:      The department is currently in need of a new ambulance due to the age and mileage 
of the current fleet. Once the order is placed it will be an estimated two-year time frame for the delivery 
of the unit. 

FACTS AND FINDINGS: 
1.ETR has provided a price quote for this ambulance.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
1.The Board approves the purchase of the new ambulance. 
2.The Board does not approve the purchase of the new ambulance. 
 
FUNDING:    SPLOST VII 
 
POLICY ANALYSIS:   NONE 
 
RECOMMENDATION:    Board adopts alternative number 1. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   Price Quote. 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 










































































































	Final BOC Meeting Agenda March 19  2024.pdf
	BOC Regular Session Minutes March 06, 2024.pdf
	County Commission, Miles, Zoning and Variance packet.pdf
	Planning Board, letters, Miles request
	Hagberg letter
	Rousseau Creek Neighborhood Speed Table Petition 2024
	Brunson
	Brunson2
	Brunson3
	Wright
	Hagberg response

	Rousseau Creek Neighborhood Speed Tables Petition 2024-Signature Pages A-B Signed-Scanned

	Raysville Commisison Packet.pdf
	Commission cover sheet -- Raysville concert
	DATE: TO: FROM: ISSUE:
	FACTS AND FINDINGS:
	ALTERNATIVES:
	ATTACHMENTS:

	Temp license application -- Raysville 2024

	EMS Staff Report 03.19.2024.pdf
	Quote New Ambulance.pdf
	1 Accord Concession Stand fiber Conduit 03.19.2024.pdf
	Monthly Budget Report 03.19.2024.pdf
	Monlthy Financial Report 03.19.2024.pdf



